
            

 

Adults and Health Scrutiny Panel 

 
THURSDAY, 27TH FEBRUARY, 2014 at 18:30 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, 
WOOD GREEN, N22 8LE. 
 
MEMBERS: 
 
CO-OPTEES: 

Councillors Adamou (Chair), Bull, Erskine, Stennett & Winskill 
 
Helena Kania (HFOP) 
 

 
AGENDA 
 
 
1. WEBCASTING    
 
 Please note: This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 

Council’s internet site – at the start of the meeting the Chair will confirm if all or part of 
the meeting is being filmed.  The images and sound recording may be used for 
training purposes within the Council. 
 
Generally the public seating areas are not filmed.  However, by entering the meeting 
room and using the public seating area, you are consenting to being filmed and to the 
possible use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting and /or training 
purposes. 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Committee Clerk at the 
meeting. 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE    
 
 To receive apologies for absence. 

 
3. URGENT ITEMS    
 
 The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business.  Late 

items will be dealt with under the agenda item where they appear.  New items will be 
dealt with at the end of the agenda. 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 



 

2 

 A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter who attends a meeting of 
the authority at which the matter is considered: 
 

(i) Must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest 
becomes apparent, and 

(ii) May not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must withdraw 
from the meeting room. 

 
A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which is not 
registered in the Members’ Register of Interests or the subject of a pending 
notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days of the 
disclosure. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests are 
defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

5. DEPUTATIONS    
 
 To consider any requests received in accordance with Part 4, Section B, paragraph 

29 of the Council’s Constitution. 
 

6. CABINET MEMBER Q&A    
 
 Cllr Vanier, Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Services, will attend to answer 

questions on her portfolio area. 
 

7. INTEGRATING SERVICES    
 
 To receive a report outlining work which is being done by the Health and Wellbeing 

Board on integrating services across health and social care. 
 
Attendees: 
David Cowell, Interim Service Manager (Health and Social Care Integration) 
 
REPORT TO FOLLOW 
 
 

8. PHARMACIES - PARTNERSHIP WORKING AND ROLE WITHIN CARE 
PATHWAYS  (PAGES 1 - 6)  

 
 To receive a report outlining partnership working with pharmacies and the role of 

pharmacies in care pathways. 
 
Attendees: 
Susan Otiti, AD, Public Health 
Teresa Edmans, Public Health 
Gerald Alexander, Local Pharmaceutical Committee  
 
 



 

3 

9. HARINGEY CCG - RESPONSE TO FRANCIS REPORT  (PAGES 7 - 18)  
 
 To receive an update on Haringey CCG’s response to the Francis report. 

 
10. ACCESS TO PRIMARY CARE    
 
 To receive a report on work being done to improve access to primary care in the 

borough. 
 
REPORT TO FOLLOW 
 

11. FEEDBACK FROM AREA CHAIRS    
 
 To receive any items from Area Chairs. 

 
12. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    
 
13. JHOSC UPDATE    
 
 To receive a verbal update on work being done by the Joint Health Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee. 
 

 
 
Bernie Ryan 
Assistant Director – Corporate Governance and 
Monitoring Officer 
Level 5 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Melanie Ponomarenko 
Senior Policy Officer (Scrutiny) 
Level 5 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 
Tel: 0208 489 2933 
Email: 
Melanie.Ponomarenko@Haringey.gov.uk  
 
Wednesday, 19 February 2014 

 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

 

 

Report for: 
Adult and Health Scrutiny 
Panel 

Item 
Number: 

 

 

Title: Partnership working and pharmacies role within care pathways 

 

Report 
Authorised by: 

 
Jeanelle de Gruchy, Director of Public Health 

 

Lead Officer: 
Susan Otiti, Assistant Director of Public Health with support from 
Gerald Alexander, Haringey Local Pharmaceutical Committee 

 

 
Ward(s) affected: All 

 
Report for Non Key Decisions: 

 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 

 
1.1 The Adult Health and Scrutiny Panel has requested a report describing the role that 

the pharmacies play in various aspects such as: “prevention, advice, medicine use reviews 

and whether pharmacies are utilised and ‘linked in’ to the health landscape”. 

 

2. Recommendations 

 

2.1 The Adult Health and Scrutiny Panel to support public health in furthering its work with 

Haringey pharmacists in developing the Healthy Living Pharmacy programme. 

 

3. Background information 

 

3.1 Community pharmacies can be an effective setting for promoting health and wellbeing 

messages and for the delivery of public health servicesi.  

 

Agenda Item 8Page 1



 

2 

 

The current network of over 11,000 community pharmacies in England provides the nation 

with:  

 

• Ready and easy access to healthcare professionals – in a variety of locations from 

community shopping parades, high street locations and retail complexes 

• Long opening hours – evenings and weekends  

• Anonymity, where appropriate 

• Local businesses well connected to their local communities  

• Pharmacy staff tend to reflect the social and ethnic backgrounds of the populations 

they serve 

• The opportunity to consult healthcare professionals without an appointment 

• Facilitating easy access for patients to their prescribed medication, this access 

supports self-care 

• Excellent opportunities for promoting public health messages. 

 

3.2 The key to effective service planning is to consider community pharmacy as an 

important service that is rooted in their communities, served and staffed by trained 

professionals that is complementary to general practice.  

  

3.3 The Government has already recognised the potential of community pharmacies as 

“perhaps the biggest untapped resource for health improvement…a resource for reducing 

health inequalities, especially for vulnerable and deprived populations”. 

 

3.4 People visit pharmacies both when they are sick and when they are well; consequently 

1.6 million people enter a community pharmacy every day in England for a health-related 

matter. It is this daily contact between a significant cross-section of society and 

pharmacists and their staff that provides a genuine opportunity for tackling health 

inequalities. Department of Health statistics show that 96% of the population, even those 

in the most deprived areas, can get to a pharmacy within 20 minutes by walking or using 

public transport. 

   

Page 2



 

3 

 

3.5 The NHS Community Pharmacy contract for England and Wales was introduced in 

2005ii. Under this contract community pharmacies provide the following essential services:  

• Dispensing 

• Repeat prescriptions  

• Disposal of unwanted medicines  

• Promotion of healthy lifestyles 

• Signposting to other services 

• Support for self care 

 

3.6 As well as national services provided by all pharmacies, the pharmacy contract also 

includes enhanced services that are commissioned locally. 

 

3.7 There are a number of local enhanced services operating throughout the country, 

reflecting the varying needs in different areas identified through local areas pharmaceutical 

needs assessment. 

 

4. The Haringey experience 

 

4.1 Haringey has 57 pharmacy contractors that provide pharmaceutical services to 

Haringey residents and patients, plus one internet and mail order pharmacy that operates 

without providing face to face contact. 18% of these pharmacies are owned and operated 

by multiples that belong to the Company Chemists Association. The remainder are termed 

‘independents’, operating as individual pharmacies or small groups in common ownership. 

Haringey pharmacies dispense 3.18 million prescriptions annually, which approximates to 

around 9,300 prescriptions daily. NHS income accounts for around 90% of a typical 

pharmacy’s turnover.  

 

4.2 Haringey pharmacists are able to provide advice and a wide range of services as 

described in section 3.5. In addition some pharmacies provide professional domiciliary 

services, meaning services can be offered to people in their homes, supporting enhanced 

efficiency of social care services often allowing earlier discharge of patients from 

Page 3



 

4 

 

secondary care back into the community; this can help reduce delayed discharge from 

hospital.   

 

4.3 The Haringey Local Pharmaceutical Committee (LPC) and pharmacists have a long 

history of working in partnership with public health and the Haringey Clinical 

Commissioning Group (CCG) medicines management team. Prior to April 2013, this 

partnership working was formalised in the local NHS through a number of local enhanced 

services. Following the NHS reforms in April 2013 responsibility for some of these local 

enhanced services transferred with public health to the local authority as public health 

service contracts funded through the public health grant. 

 

Haringey pharmacies have the opportunity to take part in a number of local enhanced 

services, managed either by Haringey CCG or public health, including: 

 

• A minor ailments service to reduce waiting times in GP practices.  The scheme 

educates patients to self-care for minor self-limiting conditions and appropriate use 

of primary care services. The scheme increases patient access to advice and 

treatment. This is likely to reduce inappropriate consultations of GPs and practice 

nurses, inappropriate visits to urgent care centres, A&E department and use of 

ambulance services and thereby provides potential cost savings. The scheme 

integrates community pharmacy into the NHS, providing innovation in the delivery 

of services 

• A sexual health service for under 25 year olds including the provision of free 

emergency hormonal contraception, condom distribution, Chlamydia testing and 

treatment 

• Treatment through dispensing and the supervision of consumption of opiates to 

support substance misusers and problematic drug users 

• A needle exchange service helping prevent the spread of blood borne viruses 

 

• The supply of healthy start vitamins to all in the following eligible groups; pregnant 

women, women who have had a baby in the last year and children under four years 

old and 

Page 4



 

5 

 

• Anticoagulation monitoring 

•  Hepatitis B and C spot testing and Hepatitis B vaccination to intravenous drug 

users. 

 

5. Policy Implication 

  

5.1 With the transfer of public health to local government and the setting up of health and 

Wellbeing boards (HWBs); councils have taken on three new interrelated functions in 

relation to locally commissioned services. The Local Government Associationiii sets out 

local authority’s new role in relation to pharmacies, as: 

 

• Undertaking pharmaceutical needs assessments through the health and wellbeing 

board 

• Councils and HWBs will also have a broader strategic role in supporting the 

development of community pharmacies with an increased role in public health and 

health improvement. 

 

5.2 Public health is currently leading on the development of the pharmaceutical needs 

assessment on behalf of the HWB; the new PNA is due for publication in April 2015. 

  

5.3 Public health recognises the increasing potential for health improvement programmes 

to be delivered through community pharmacies particularly through the national Healthy 

Living Pharmacy programme (HLP). HLP is supported by a number of strategic papersiv 

which set out a vision for pharmacy’s becoming health-promoting centres. The HLP 

framework is a tiered commissioning framework aimed at achieving consistent delivery, 

through a quality assurance structure, to deliver a broad range of high quality public health 

services to widen access and reduce inequalities.  

 

5.4 In November 2013 public health held a consultation meeting with local pharmacists to 

assess the feasibility and support of introducing HLP. The event was attended by 29 

pharmacists; by the end of the consultation, 27 expressed an interest in being part of the 

HLP programme. 

Page 5



 

6 

 

 

5.5 Over the next year public health will work with pharmacies, the LPC and the CCG to 

implement the HLP framework, at the same time building on the enhanced services 

already being commissioned (listed in section 4.3). The intention is to: 

 

• Increase the number of pharmacy’s offering sexual health services alongside 

broadening the range of  sexual health services to under 25 year olds to provide a 

range of sexual health services, such as STI and HIV screening and increased 

access to condoms and emergency contraception for the over 25 year olds. 

• Consider what other health promoting services could be commissioned through this 

framework. 

 

6. Use of Appendices 

 

None 

 
 
References 
 
                                                 
i Consolidating and developing the evidence base and research for community pharmacy’s 
contribution to public health: a progress report from Task Group 3 of the Pharmacy and 
Public Health Forum. Public Health England. December 2013 
 
ii
 http://www.psnc.org.uk/pages/about_community_pharmacy.html 
 

iii
 Community Pharmacy: Local government’s new Public Health role. The Local 
Government Association. October 2013 

 

iv
 Pharmacy in England: Building on Strengths, Delivering the Future. The Department of 
Health. 2008 

Page 6



 
 
  

 
 
 

MEETING: Adults &Health Scrutiny Panel 
 

DATE: Thursday 27 February 2014 
 

TITLE: Haringey CCG briefing on Francis – one year on 
 

LEAD DIRECTOR/ 
MANAGER: 

Sarah Price Chief Officer HCCG 
 
 

AUTHOR: Jennie Williams Executive Nurse and Director of Quality 
and Integrated Governance   
 

CONTACT DETAILS: Jennie.williams@haringeyccg.nhs.uk 
 

 
SUMMARY: 

 
The Adults &Health Scrutiny Panel has requested an update on Haringey CCG’s 
position with regard to responding to the final report into Mid Staffordshire NHS 
Foundation Trust (Francis Report) published 5 February 2013.   
 
This report provides: 

• A summary of the key findings of the public inquiry into Mid Staffordshire 
NHS Foundation Trust (Francis Report) published 5 February 2013. 

• Actions taken by NHS England to address the concerns.  

• A summary of key actions taken to date by Haringey CCG to improve 
oversight and accountability of the services it commissions. 

• A summary of areas for focus during 2014/15 to ensure that the services 
commissioned by the CCG on behalf of the people of Haringey are of the 
highest quality and delivered with respect and compassion. 
 

 

 
SUPPORTING PAPERS: 

 
N/A 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

The panel is asked to: 

• NOTE the update  

 

 

Agenda Item 9Page 7



Objective(s) / Plans supported by this paper: A key CCG’s objective is to 

commission high quality valued and responsive services working in partnership with 

the public to make the best use of resources. 

 

Audit Trail: This briefing paper will be used to refresh the CCG’s approach to 

ensuring that commissioned services are centred on openness, trust and 

compassion. 

 

Patient & Public Involvement (PPI): There was no patient involvement in this paper 

 

Equality Analysis: n/a 

 

Risks: n/a 

 

Resource Implications: There are no particular resource implications 

 
Haringey CCG briefing on Francis – one year on 

 “We need to embrace transparency and learning, unequivocally and everywhere, so 

as to build trust with the public and knowledge within the NHS. We need to embed 

compassion in every part of the NHS, placing patients’ wellbeing at the centre of 

every decision we make.  And we need to involve patients, their families and carers 

as much as possible in that process”.  

Jane Cummings, Chief Nursing Officer for England and NHS England Chief 
Nurse 

1 Introduction  

In December 2013 the Adults &Health Scrutiny Panel requested an update on 

Haringey CCG’s position with regard to responding to the final report into Mid 

Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust (Francis Report) published 5 February 2013.   

 

This report provides: 

 

Page 8



• A summary of the key findings of the public inquiry into Mid Staffordshire 

NHS Foundation Trust (Francis Report) published 5 February 2013. 

• Actions taken by NHS England to address the concerns.  

• A summary of key actions taken to date by Haringey CCG to improve 

oversight and accountability of the services it commissions. 

• A summary of areas for focus during 2014/15 to ensure that the services 

commissioned by the CCG on behalf of the people of Haringey are of the 

highest quality and delivered with respect and compassion. 

 
2 Background 
 
The final report into Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust (Francis Report) 

published 5 February 2013 examined the operation of the commissioning, 

supervisory and regulatory organisations and other agencies, including the culture 

and systems of those organisations in relation to their monitoring role at Mid 

Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust between January 2005 and March 2009. It 

examined why problems at the Trust were not identified sooner and appropriate 

action taken. 

 

The report built on the first independent inquiry also chaired by Robert Francis QC 

and highlighted ‘a systematic failure of the provisions of good care’ and confirmed 

that providing good, safe care is about both systems and people. The report 

concluded that a fundamental change in culture is required to prevent future system 

failures, and that many of the changes can be implemented within the current 

system. It stressed the importance of avoiding a blame culture, and proposed that 

the NHS, collectively and individually, adopts a learning culture aligned first and 

foremost with the needs and care of patients. 

 

Robert Francis QC made 280 recommendations, which focused primarily on 

securing a greater cohesion and culture across the system, which ‘will not be 

brought about by further “top down” pronouncements, but by the engagement of 

every single person serving patients’.  

 

Page 9



On 26 March 2013 the Department of Health released “Patients First and Foremost‐ 

The Initial Government Response to the report of The Mid Staffordshire NHS 

Foundation Trust Public Inquiry” 

 

At the beginning of this report the Government sets out a Statement of Common 

Purpose that was signed by the chairs of key organisations across the Health and 

Care system. It renews and reaffirms the commitment to the values of the NHS, as 

set out in the Constitution, and includes pledges to work together for patients, always 

treat patients and their families with compassion, dignity and respect, to listen to 

patients and to act on feedback. It asks all organisations within the health and care 

system to join them in signing up to this statement of common purpose. 

 

Within the report the Government set out a five point plan, as follows: ‐ 

 

1. Preventing problems ‐ putting in place a culture of zero‐harm and           

compassionate care 

2. Detecting problems quickly 

3. Taking action promptly 

4. Ensuring robust accountability‐ accountability for wrong doers 

5. Ensuring staff are trained and motivated 

 

A revised NHS Constitution published in March 2013 incorporates many of the 

changes that were consulted on, and will where possible, include further changes 

resulting from additional suggestions heard through consultation. 

 

Since the Francis report two additional reports have been published, namely the 

Keogh and Berwick reviews (July and August 2013 respectively). Collectively all 

three reports recommend that: 

 

• Patients need to be put first; listened to and involved. 

• Staff need to be listened to, nurtured and supported. 

• Quantitative data has strengths but is limited; emphasis placed on the value of 

qualitative data to add more meaning to intelligence. 

Page 10



• Regulation is not the answer. Where quality of care and patient safety 

are concerned, it is the culture of teams and organisations that counts. 

3 The Francis Report: One Year On 

In the year since the publication of the Francis Report NHS England (NHSE) has led 

a number of national initiatives to address the concerns raised in this landmark 

report. These include: 

• Launch of the Friends and Family Test, first in all inpatient wards and A&E 

units and now in all maternity services, to gather real-time patient feedback 

on which hospitals can take immediate action to improve their patients’ 

experiences. The test will be rolled out to all parts of the NHS in the coming 

years. 

• Roll out of the three year new plan for nursing, midwifery and care staff – the 

Compassion in Practice strategy, which includes the “6Cs” which are being 

implemented across all areas of care, training and practice. 

• During 2013, NHSE’s medical director, Professor Sir Bruce Keogh, carried 

out a review of the quality of care and treatment provided by 14 hospital 

trusts that are persistent outliers on mortality indicators, developing a new 

patient-centred approach to investigation that has been taken on by the 

CQC. 

• NHSE’s Board approved the development of a network of Patient Safety 

Collaboratives. These will ensure everyone involved in healthcare; staff, 

clinicians, patients, leaders, commissioners and regulators, are able to work 

together in a collaborative way to assess and improve safety, to build 

capability, and to focus on the actions that can make the biggest difference 

to patients1.  

• In response to the staffing guidance published by the Chief Nursing Officer 

and National Quality Board, every Trust in England has been directed to 

publish actual versus expected nurse, midwifery and care staffing levels and 

                                                           
1 The programme to develop Patient Safety Collaboratives includes establishing a Patient Safety Improvement Fellowship 

scheme to develop 5,000 Fellows within a national faculty within five years. 

Page 11



to clearly explain how they have decided on their staffing numbers in each 

ward and clinical area. 

• At the end of 2013, trusts in the North of England began regular publication 

of numbers of patients who develop pressure ulcers and patients that fall 

while in hospital. This will be combined with the results from the Friends and 

Family Test, the NHS safety thermometer, patient and staff experience 

surveys and patients stories, all in one place, to build up a picture of care 

quality and an excellent and open reporting culture. 

• As part of a commitment to be open and transparent about patient safety 

incident reporting, NHSE has begun publishing data on never events in 

greater detail than ever before.  

• NHSE has launched the new National Patient Safety Alerting System 

(NPSAS) which will ensure warnings of emerging risks can be rapidly 

issued. As part of the new process, by April 2014 NHSE will also begin 

publishing monthly data on trusts who fail to confirm they have complied 

with the required actions of an alert within the set timeframe. 

• Quality Surveillance Groups (QSAGs) have been put in place across 

NHSE’s 27 area teams and four regions, to share information and address 

quality of care. The groups are formed from a range of stakeholders and 

look at what data such as mortality rates and soft intelligence like patient 

opinions tell us about where there might be concerns about the quality of 

care, what patients and clinicians are worried about in terms of service 

quality, and what can be done to investigate and address those worries. 

NHSE is working with the new groups as they develop to set out national 

guidance for collaborative quality surveillance. 

• In the last 12 months, NHSE have started publishing outcome data from 

consultants in 12 surgical specialties, with more to come, as well as more 

detailed data than ever before on GPs outcomes. This will extend and link 

data collection from all healthcare settings to provide a fuller picture than 

ever before of how well health services as a whole care for patients. 

• NHSE plan to develop a new national safety website which will bring 

together, for the first time, all of the relevant safety information and make it 

Page 12



accessible for the NHS, patients, media and relatives alike. This will include 

information on staffing, pressure sores, falls and other key indicators, where 

possible, at ward level.  

 
4 Actions taken by Haringey CCG to date 
 
At the heart of the Francis report is a determination that the Inquiry's 

recommendations and findings be implemented and not suffer the same 

fate as many previous Inquiries. The report’s first recommendation sets out 

requirements for oversight and accountability to ensure implementation of 

its proposals including all commissioning, service provision, regulatory and 

ancillary organisations in healthcare should reflect on the report and its 

recommendations and decide how to apply them to their own work. 

 

Haringey CCG has begun this process following publication of the initial 

findings and will continue to reflect and act upon the report’s findings. In 

partnership with local stakeholders such as Haringey Health Watch, Haringey CCG 

(HCCG) will share actions taken across the health and social care system locally and 

seek out best practice nationally to identify further ways to improve patient care. 

 

The Francis report recommends that each organisation should announce at 

the earliest opportunity its decision on the extent to which it accepts the 

recommendations and what it intends to do to implement them. Each 

organisation should publish, at least annually, a report on its progress in 

achieving its planned actions. 

 

Haringey CCG accepts the overall principles of the report. Soon after the publication 

of the Francis report in 2013, HCCG Governing Body (GB) reviewed a locally 

developed Francis assurance framework which set out the key actions for the CCG 

as a commissioning organisation. Further to this, the Quality Committee 

(subcommittee to the Governing Body) continues to consider the specific details/ 

findings of the report and the progress made by the CCG in responding to the key 

actions.  

 

Page 13



In March 2014 the GB will be presented with a refreshed assurance framework and a 

local action plan. The panel is asked to note that the development of framework and 

action plan has not prevented incremental improvements taking place but will ensure 

all gaps are identified across the recommendations more applicable to the CCG than 

others. 

 

Below are some examples of the work HCCG has already begun This list is not 

exhaustive but acts as a foundation on which further improvements will need to be 

built. 

 

• The CCG expects all commissioned services to use feedback to improve their 

services and work alongside the CCG to regularly inform, consult and involve 

patients, their families, carers and the public in the planning and review of 

services. During 2013 the CCG developed a Communication and 

Engagement Strategy (2013) which adopts a number of approaches to 

collecting views.  

• In January 2014 the Haringey CCG Quality and Patient Safety Strategy 

(2014) was approved by the Governing Body. This strategy supports the CCG 

in keeping quality at the heart of all the CCG does.  It communicates the 

vision, key drivers and ambitions for quality and it explains how the CCG will 

deliver this vision.  It describes the CCG’s commitment to continuous 

improvement of quality outcomes and encourages the development of robust 

quality assurance mechanisms, in order to provide assurance to the 

Governing Body about the standard of quality and patient safety in 

commissioned services and is available on the CCG website2. 

• The CCG is implementing an ’Insight and Learning Programme’ to listen, 

record, triangulate, investigate, learn, act and share patient experience. The 

programme will include the presentation of patient and carer stories, ‘walk the 

patient pathway’ visits and a mechanism for our stakeholders and partners to 

send us ‘quality alerts’ to highlight a concern or example of good practice. It is 

hoped that the ’Insight and Learning Programme’ will inform and support 

Healthwatch’s schedule of Enter and View visits. 

                                                           
2
 http://www.haringeyccg.nhs.uk/ 

 

Page 14



• Work has begun across North Central London (NCL) CCGs to ensure system 

improvement is sought out and knowledge and best practice are shared. 

• The CCG has been participating in the local Quality Surveillance Group 

(QSAG) chaired by NHSE and is working with other CCG colleagues to 

identify system wide issues through intelligence sharing. 

• A number of the Francis recommendations are already enshrined in 

legislation, old and new. Duty of candour 3is a good example of this and is in 

every contract with our local acute and community providers. 

• Locally developed ‘key performance indicators’ (KPIs) are being included in 

acute and community 2014/15 contracts to drive performance in key areas 

such as complaint handling, mandatory training and incident reporting. 

• The CCG meets acute provides on a monthly basis to receive quality 

assurances. This assurance is sought across the 3 quality domains, patient 

experience, clinical effectiveness and patient safety. This information is 

combined with a range of quantitative and qualitative data and included in the 

CCG’s integrated performance dashboard. The dashboard is discussed 

internally and reviewed at every meeting of the GB.  

• The CCG is joining with NCL CCG’s to facilitate a learning event with NHS 

commissioned services to review the collective local response to the 

implementation of the recommendations in the Francis Report. It is anticipated 

that through this wider engagement innovative solutions to more challenging 

areas will be found.  

• Initial discussions have highlighted the need to embed openness and 

transparency into CCG processes. Additionally where possible and 

appropriate the sharing of intelligence about potential quality issues occurs 

more readily. 

• The Francis Inquiry makes specific recommendations in relation to frail 

elderly people. It is clear from this inquiry alongside inquiries such as the 

one undertaken into Winterbourne view that the most vulnerable patients 

are at the most risk from harm. Haringey CCG and Haringey Local Authority 

are prioritising the care of older people and have placed particular emphasis 

                                                           
3 The NHS Constitution includes a new passage which emphasises that “respect, dignity, compassion and care should be at 

the core of how patients and staff are treated not only because that is the right thing to do but because patient safety, 

experience and outcomes are all improved when staff are valued, empowered and supported”. 

Page 15



on the quality of care provided in local nursing homes during 2013/14. The 

CCG has recently refreshed its approach by implementing the ‘Quality Matters 

in Care Homes’ programme. One of the aims of this service is to ensure that 

quality in Haringey nursing and residential care homes is systematically 

monitored and improving. 

• The CCG is working with local acute providers to ensure robust arrangements 

are in place to manage and learn from complaints in a systematic way and to 

communicate how services are responding and changing to patient feedback. 

• The CCG  is constantly seeking ways to actively identify quality issues 

through innovative means, for example in February 2014 a system of quality 

alerts for General Practitioners will be introduced to raise concerns on behalf 

of their patients. This will identify opportunities to improve the care patients, 

particularly around communication and discharge processes. 

• Close working  with partner agencies for both children and 

adult safeguarding continues. The CCG is keen to triangulate safeguarding 

systems and processes with other quality alerts, in particular the CCG’s 

response to the prevention of pressure ulcers. 

 
5 Conclusion  
 
As stated at the beginning of this document, the full implications of this 

public enquiry cannot be fully realised instantly or indeed within a year. In 

order to fully implement the recommendations a fundamental shift 

in culture is required; this will take time and continued commitment. 

 

In order continue on this journey the CCG will focussing on the following  areas 

during 2014/15 to strengthen oversight and accountability and ensure that the 

services commissioned by the CCG on behalf of the people of Haringey are of the 

highest quality and delivered with dignity and compassion. 

 

• Ensure that the CCG Governing Body, Health & Wellbeing Board, and other 

forums continue to be briefed on the progress of this work programme and the 

issues it raises throughout 2014/15. 

• Build on work started to ensure that patients’ needs and the quality of 

Page 16



• care they receive is to the top of the agenda, always.  

• Respond to Francis Report and Keogh and Berwick reviews in a meaningful 

way that will improve the care HCCG commission’ for patients. 

• Strengthen the way in which the CCG measures, monitors and reports 

performance of commissioned services to ensure organisations  are held to 

account when the quality and safety of services falls below the expected 

standard. 

• Embed the Insight and Learning Programme to drive performance and assure 

a compassionate and caring culture in commissioned services. 

 
 
 
Jennie Williams Executive Nurse and Director of Quality and Integrated Governance   
 
14 February 2014 

 

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	8 Pharmacies - partnership working and role within care pathways
	9 Haringey CCG - response to Francis report

